

Fluid-Structure Interaction Effects on the Propulsion of an Flexible Composite Monofin

Name, first author¹

Affiliation

Full Mailing Address

e-mail

ASME Membership (if applicable)

Name, second author

Affiliation

Full Mailing Address

e-mail

ASME Membership (if applicable)

Name, third author

Affiliation

Full Mailing Address

e-mail

ASME Membership (if applicable)

Name, add additional authors as necessary

Affiliation

Full Mailing Address

e-mail

ASME Membership (if applicable)

ABSTRACT

~~Finite element method has been used to analyze the propulsive efficiency of a swimming fin. Fluid-structure interaction models can be used to study the effects of an added mass on the natural frequencies of a multilayer anisotropic fin oscillating in a compressible fluid. In this study, the finite element method was used to analyze the propulsive efficiency of a swimming fin. Water by neglecting viscosity effects has~~

¹ Corresponding author information can be added as a footnote.

Commented [A1]: Thanks for providing this opportunity to assist you with this manuscript. I have checked this document for language, readability, clarity, flow, structure, and an appropriate tone. I have also checked the manuscript for conformance with the formatting guidelines provided. In the cases where additional information is required from you, I have added comments to bring them to your attention. Do not hesitate to contact me if you require any clarifications or have some questions. My best wishes for your success with the manuscript.

Commented [A2]: Please insert the author names and affiliations.

Commented [A3]: Please briefly mention the novelty of the study in the abstract.

Commented [A4]: Please check if this should be "monofin" for specificity.

Commented [A5]: I have rearranged the sentences to improve the flow. The abstract should start by explaining the rationale for the study, so please add a line about why this study was needed or what specific gap in the literature is being addressed through it.

36 ~~been was~~ considered as ~~the~~ surrounding fluid, ~~and the viscosity effects were neglected, and~~ ~~the~~
37 frequency response of the fin ~~in such conditions has been was~~ compared with that ~~of in vacuum conditions.~~
38 ~~It has been shown that~~ ~~The results show that~~ because of the added mass effects in water ~~environment~~, the
39 natural frequencies of the fin ~~decrease.~~

40 INTRODUCTION 41

42 Multilayer anisotropic structures ~~have wide~~ applications in ~~areas various fields,~~
43 ~~such as including~~ modern construction engineering, biomechanical engineering,
44 aerospace ~~industries engineering~~, aircraft construction, and ~~the components of~~ nuclear-
45 power-plant ~~component designs.~~ ~~It is Therefore, therefore it is~~ very important that the
46 modal and dynamic ~~analysis properties~~ of multilayer anisotropic structures ~~when~~
47 ~~subjected to under~~ different loading conditions ~~be be~~ clearly understood ~~so that they~~
48 ~~may be safely used in these for safe~~ industrial applications.

49 ~~It is well known that the~~ ~~The~~ natural frequencies of structures in contact with
50 fluids ~~are known to be~~ different from ~~the natural frequencies of~~ those in vacuum.

51 Therefore, ~~the prediction of predicting the change in the~~ natural frequency changes ~~due~~
52 ~~to owing to~~ the presence of ~~the a~~ fluid is important for designing structures ~~which that~~
53 are in contact with or immersed in fluids. In general, the effect of the fluid force on the
54 structure is represented as ~~an~~ added mass, which lowers the natural frequency of the
55 structure from that ~~which would be~~ measured in ~~a~~ vacuum. This decrease ~~in the natural~~
56 ~~frequency of the fluid structure system~~ is caused by ~~increasing an increase in~~ the kinetic
57 energy of the coupled system without a corresponding increase in ~~the~~ strain energy.

Commented [A6]: Please discuss the major implications of the results here.

Commented [A7]: I recommend talking briefly about why multilayer anisotropic structures have wide applications in various fields.

Commented [A8]: I recommend including a sentence to transition more smoothly from the previous point of discussion. You may want to talk about how the natural frequency of a structure is one such property.

Commented [A9]: These statements require citations. Please provide references that support these statements.

Commented [A10]: These sentences don't flow smoothly into the next paragraph. Did you perhaps mean to present a limitation with this approach to considering the effect of the fluid force on the structure? Please consider clarifying why these points need to be presented here.

58 ~~In this paper the propulsive efficiency of a swimming fin has been studied. The~~
59 ~~dynamic analysis of aquatic locomotion is a fundamental requirement parameter in~~
60 ~~the performance search analysis. In the case of swimming with fins, the propulsive~~
61 ~~efficiency depends on several factors. Most previous models suggested aimed at to~~
62 ~~evaluating the dynamic performances, including the drag and lift, which are the two~~
63 ~~relevant parameters relevant to quantifying associated with the propulsive efficiency of a~~
64 ~~fin. Some previous studies have proposed models that are essentially discrete are~~
65 ~~essentially of discrete type [1, 2], while others, by being inspired by organs of~~
66 ~~propulsion of marine cetaceans, use have used continuous models based on the organs~~
67 ~~of propulsion in marine cetaceans [3, 4]. Most of these authors studies did not account~~
68 ~~for the highly coupled nature of the problem system (fin and fluid). In fact for, for the~~
69 ~~rate of stresses observed in actual swimming, the coupling between the fluid and the fin~~
70 ~~becomes stronger.~~

71 ~~In this study, the propulsive efficiency of a swimming fin has been investigated.~~

72
73 **GOVERNING EQUATIONS**

74
75
76
77 The numerical formulations used ~~in the dynamic analysis of aquatic locomotion~~ include
78 the displacement formulation [5], ~~the potential formulation [6], the pressure~~
79 ~~formulation [7], and the combination of some of combination of multiple~~
80 ~~formulations them~~ [8]. ~~The finite element method~~ is used to ~~extract obtain~~ the natural
81 frequencies and modal shapes. To compute ~~only~~ the natural vibration modes of ~~a the~~

Commented [A11]: I have moved the objective of the study to the end of the introduction to improve the flow.

Commented [A12]: Please list some of these factors as examples.

Commented [A13]: This is the first mention of aquatic locomotion and swimming fins. Please provide some background regarding this.

Commented [A14]: Please provide citations for these models.

Commented [A15]: Did you perhaps mean the “degree of stress”?

Commented [A16]: When a comparative word such as stronger is used, there must be a consideration between two things. It must be mentioned what the coupling becomes stronger in comparison with. Perhaps this could be revised as follows: “the coupling between the fluid and fin is highly significant”

Commented [A17]: Please provide citations for these statements.

Commented [A18]: Please clarify why it is important to study the propulsive efficiency. Further, please discuss the novelty of your study. Discuss the gap in existing literature and state how your study addresses this gap. That is, are there other similar studies on this topic? If not, please mention it here. If there are, briefly discuss the studies and their limitations. Then state how your study addresses this limitation.

Here, please also further elaborate on the objective of the study and outline the methodology employed.

Commented [A19]: Please check whether this revision is an appropriate addition within the context of your meaning. I have added this phrase to provide more context.

Commented [A20]: Repeated article error refers to the unnecessary repetition of the same article in a series or list. The unnecessary repetition of the same article in a series tends to cause wordiness. Identify the repeated words and eliminate them.

For example
Original: We verified the samples using the source, the original, and the final images.
Revised: We verified the samples using the source, original, and final images.

It is fine to place the article before the first item in the list only.

Commented [A21]: Please clarify why this method was used.

82 fluid ~~alone~~, the fluid is typically described either by pressure or ~~by~~ displacement
83 potential variables. When the fluid is coupled with a solid, standard methods ~~to solve (1)~~
84 ~~and (2) consist in~~ involve eliminating either the pressure or ~~the~~ displacement potential
85 [9]. However, in both cases, ~~non-symmetric eigenvalue~~s ~~problems~~ are obtained (~~see,~~
86 ~~e.g.,~~ [10]). To ~~avoid overcome~~ this ~~drawback~~ limitation, Morand and Ohayon ~~introduce in~~
87 [6] ~~introduced~~ an alternative ~~procedure approach which consists in~~ that simultaneously
88 ~~solved for using~~ pressure and displacement potentials ~~simultaneously~~. In this section,
89 we summarize their approach; further details ~~and discussions can be found on this~~
90 ~~approach can be found~~ in their book [11].

91 In this ~~study work~~, we ~~assume consider~~ an amateur swimmer, ~~where the scale of whose~~
92 velocity U_0 is ~~supposed to be assumed to be very small~~ negligible compared ~~to with~~ the
93 compression wave velocities c_L in the fin. ~~Indeed, some~~ amateur swimmers ~~have~~
94 ~~noted~~ that, when making foot movements at low frequencies, ~~the~~ resonance
95 ~~phenomenon~~ and buckling phenomena ~~appear are~~ observed. ~~And we cannot~~ However,
96 ~~this explain why these phenomena tend to occur~~ cannot be explained, because the
97 natural frequencies of the fin, ~~which would be as~~ measured in ~~the~~ vacuum, are higher
98 than ~~the of the~~ beat frequency of an ankle, ~~for example~~. In this study, we assume that
99 the swimmer does not disturb the free surface of the fluid domain. ~~This leads~~
100 ~~to~~ Therefore, ~~neglect the gravity effects~~ the effects of gravity can be neglected.

101 ~~The~~ dimensional analysis of coupled equations (~~Navier-Stokes~~ equations and ~~the~~
102 governing equations of nonlinear elasticity) of a fluid-structure interaction model [12]
103 ~~reveals yields~~ several dimensionless parameters. One of its dimensionless parameters,

Commented [A22]: It is not clear if this is referring to [6] or the present study. Please clarify for the benefit of the reader.

Commented [A23]: It is a common convention to use an en dash rather than a hyphen when comparing objects of equal ranks. An en dash is a mid-sized dash (longer than a hyphen [-] but shorter than an em dash [—]) that accurately presents relationships between people and objects of equal ranks, such as Navier-Stokes theorem, core-shell particles, stress-strain relationship, Ni-Cr-Mo alloys, etc.

104 $\alpha=U_0/c_L$, is called the displacement parameter. The displacement parameter α allows
 105 ~~the characterizing characterization of the the~~ nature of the coupling problem considered
 106 in this studywork. In the case of the amateur swimmer ~~hypothesis~~ where $U_0 \ll c_L$, we
 107 can set the parameter α ~~to at~~ a very low value and ~~we can~~ show that the convective
 108 ~~terms~~ and viscosity terms can be neglected ~~for in~~ the fluid model [12]. We can also
 109 assume that ~~the assumption of small deformations for the~~ the deformations in the fin are
 110 sufficiently small. The resulting model is called an inertial coupling model [13]. The real
 111 shape of the fin is ~~given presented~~ in Figure 1, ~~but However,~~ for ~~the sake of the~~
 112 simplicity, the problem is considered bidimensional (Figure 2), and the fin is immersed in
 113 a large pool. The fin is modeled ~~by as~~ a multilayer linear elastic transverse anisotropic
 114 material. The different layers constituting the fin are denoted by Ω_i and have the density
 115 ρ_i . We denote ~~by u_i~~ the displacement field in the fin as u_i , and ~~p~~ the pressure field in the
 116 fluid as p . ~~The sound celerity and density of the fluid are denoted by c_0 and ρ_0 , denote~~
 117 ~~the sound celerity and density of the fluid,~~ respectively. The longitudinal axis of the fin is
 118 denoted by x . The force F , ~~as expressed in given in Eq. (1),~~ is used to describe the
 119 motion of the fin. The orientation of the layers relative to the longitudinal axis x on the
 120 fin is denoted by θ_i , ~~denotes the orientation of fibers relative to the longitudinal axis x~~
 121 ~~on the fin and takes which assumes the values 0° or 90° .~~ Here, each layer is made of
 122 either fiberglass or carbon fiber.

123 The use of the **ALE** method is not essential in this study because the material is assumed
 124 to be linear. In the frame attached to the fin, ~~solutions to the problem is to find~~ (\mathbf{u}_i, p)
 125 solutions can be determined using the following formulations:

Commented [A24]: Please check whether ALE should be defined here.
 An abbreviation should be spelled out at its first occurrence in each standalone section of text, i.e., the title, abstract, main text, and each figure/table legend, followed by the abbreviation in parentheses. (Exception: If the abbreviation is on the journal's list of permitted abbreviations, this need not be done. Moreover, an abbreviation need not be introduced in a section if there is no subsequent mention of the term in that section; only the full term should be used in such cases.) Thereafter, only the abbreviation may be used.

In addition, this is the first mention of the method. Please provide background information and the necessary citations.

126 (i) solid domain (Ω_i):

$$\begin{aligned} \rho_i \frac{\partial^2 \mathbf{u}_i}{\partial t^2} &= \nabla \cdot \boldsymbol{\sigma}(\mathbf{u}_i) + \rho_i \mathbf{F}, \\ \boldsymbol{\sigma}(\mathbf{u}_i) &= \mathbb{K}(\theta_i) \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}(\mathbf{u}_i); \end{aligned} \quad (1)$$

Commented [A25]: Please define all the parameters in equation 1-4

Commented [A26]: Please provide the equations in an editable format using the Insert > Equation function of MS Word.

128 (ii) fluid domain (Ω_f):

$$\frac{1}{\rho_0 c_0^2} \frac{\partial^2 p}{\partial t^2} = \nabla \cdot \left[\frac{1}{\rho_0} (\nabla p - \rho_0 \mathbf{F}) \right]; \quad (2)$$

130 (iii) fluid–solid interaction (Γ):

$$\begin{aligned} \boldsymbol{\sigma}(\mathbf{u}) \mathbf{n} &= -p \mathbf{n}, \\ [\nabla p - \rho_0 \mathbf{F}] \cdot \mathbf{n} &= -\rho_0 \frac{\partial^2 \mathbf{u}}{\partial t^2} \cdot \mathbf{n}; \end{aligned} \quad (3)$$

132 (iv) other boundary conditions:

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{u} &= \mathbf{0} \quad (\Gamma_0), \\ [\nabla p - \rho_0 \mathbf{F}] \cdot \mathbf{n} &= 0 \quad (\Gamma_f), \\ p &= 0 \quad (\Gamma_e \cup \Gamma_g \cup \Gamma_s). \end{aligned} \quad (4)$$

134 MODAL ANALYSIS OF COMPOSITE MONOFIN

Commented [A27]: Please provide details about the hardware used in the study.

135 ~~4~~The modal analysis of elastic submerged structures is ~~needed~~ required in every-all
 136 modern constructions and has wide engineering applications in engineering fields,
 137 especially in ocean engineering. In this study, modal analysis ~~is was important~~
 138 ~~to performed to~~ predict the dynamic behavior of the submerged fin. ~~It is well known that~~
 139 ~~T~~he natural frequencies of the submerged elastic structures are ~~different~~ lower from
 140 ~~than~~ those in vacuum. ~~The effect of fluid forces on the submerged fin is represented as~~

141 added mass, which decreases the natural frequencies of the submerged fin from those
 142 which would be measured in the vacuum. This decrease in the natural frequencies of
 143 the submerged structures is caused by the increase of the kinetic energy of the fluid-fin
 144 system without a corresponding increase in strain energy. This step seems is an
 145 important ~~to consideration when calculating calculate~~ the variations ~~of in the~~ natural
 146 frequencies of the fin ~~for under~~ different ~~situations conditions~~. ~~For To~~ this ~~end~~, we
 147 ~~looked at determined~~ the modes of the fin in ~~the~~ vacuum and water.
 148 ~~Indeed, In general, to test~~ the quality of a fin is tested ~~by examining, it is usual to~~
 149 ~~search~~ its quasi-static deformed shape and dynamic response in air. ~~Here, we The~~ aim is
 150 to ~~check determine if whether the~~ results of ~~the~~ tests ~~carried out of the conducted in~~
 151 water are strongly influenced by the presence of the surrounding fluid. In addition,
 152 frequencies can ~~have contain~~ accurate information ~~in on~~ the dynamic behavior of the
 153 system. ~~By Upon~~ introducing the ~~spaces of~~ test function ~~spaces~~ $V = \{k \in H^1(\Omega_s), k = 0$
 154 $(\Gamma_0)\}$ and $\phi \in Q = H^1(\Omega_f)$, the ~~weak formulations of presented in Eqs. (1) and (2) holds can~~
 155 ~~be expressed as follows~~:

$$\int_{\Omega_s} \sigma(\mathbf{u}) : \varepsilon(\mathbf{v}) dx - \omega^2 \int_{\Omega_s} \rho \mathbf{u} \cdot \mathbf{v} dx + \int_{\Gamma} p \mathbf{v} \cdot \mathbf{n} d\Gamma = 0,$$

$$\int_{\Omega_f} \frac{1}{\rho_0} \nabla p \cdot \nabla \phi dx - \omega^2 \int_{\Omega_f} \frac{p \phi}{\rho_0 c_0^2} dx - \omega^2 \int_{\Gamma} \mathbf{u} \cdot \mathbf{n} \phi d\Gamma = 0,$$
(5)

156 _____
 157 ~~w~~here

Commented [A28]: I have deleted this as it has already been discussed before.

Commented [A29]: Please define these variables.

$$\int_{\Omega_s} \sigma(\mathbf{u}) : \varepsilon(\mathbf{v}) dx = \sum_{i=1}^{N_L} \int_{\Omega_i} \sigma(\mathbf{u}_i) : \varepsilon(\mathbf{v}_i) dx, \quad (6)$$

$$\int_{\Omega_s} \rho \mathbf{u} \cdot \mathbf{v} dx = \sum_{i=1}^{N_L} \int_{\Omega_i} \rho_i \mathbf{u}_i \cdot \mathbf{v}_i dx.$$

158

159 In the above equations, N_L is the number of layers. Upon uUsing the Lagrange finite
 160 elements, where $u_h \in P_2 \times P_2$ and $p_h \in P_1$, the discretization of the weak formulation in
 161 Eq. (5) induces-yields a non-symmetrical system:

162

$$\begin{bmatrix} \mathbb{K}_s & \mathbb{B} \\ \mathbb{O} & \mathbb{K}_p \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{U} \\ \mathbf{P} \end{bmatrix} = \omega^2 \begin{bmatrix} \mathbb{M}_s & \mathbb{O} \\ \mathbb{M}_a & \mathbb{M}_p \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{U} \\ \mathbf{P} \end{bmatrix}, \quad (7)$$

163 where \mathbf{U} and \mathbf{P} are the vectors of the nodal values for u and p , respectively. The

164 submatrices of the matrices presented in Eq. (7) are defined byas

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{V}^T \mathbb{K}_s \mathbf{U} &= \int_{\Omega_s} \sigma(\mathbf{u}) : \varepsilon(\mathbf{v}) dx, \\ \Phi^T \mathbb{K}_p \mathbf{P} &= \int_{\Omega_f} \frac{p\phi}{c_0^2} dx, \\ \mathbf{V}^T \mathbb{M}_s \mathbf{U} &= \int_{\Omega_s} \rho \mathbf{u} \cdot \mathbf{v} dx, \\ \mathbf{V}^T \mathbb{B} \mathbf{P} &= \int_{\Gamma} p \mathbf{v} \cdot \mathbf{n} d\Gamma, \\ \Phi^T \mathbb{M}_p \mathbf{P} &= \int_{\Omega_f} \nabla p \cdot \nabla \phi dx, \\ \Phi^T \mathbb{M}_a \mathbf{U} &= \int_{\Gamma} \rho_0 \mathbf{u} \cdot \mathbf{n} \phi d\Gamma, \end{aligned} \quad (8)$$

165

166 where \mathbf{V} and Φ are the vectors of the nodal values for k and ϕ , respectively, and- \mathbb{M}_a is

167 the added mass matrix (symmetric and positive definite-~~[11]~~ [11]). The non-symmetric

168 system (Eq. (7)) was solved using the commercial software COMSOL Multiphysics
 169 (COMSOL, Inc.).
 170 Two types of calculations were ~~carried out~~ performed. The first ~~is~~ corresponds to when
 171 the palm is plunged into ~~the~~ vacuum, and the second ~~corresponds to when it is plunged~~
 172 into water. We ~~give below~~ present the results ~~for of~~ a model ~~of for up to up to~~ five layers
 173 ($N_L = 5$) and the natural frequencies in vacuum and water. The fibers of each layer are
 174 arranged alternately along the two directions ~~represented by the~~ orthogonal axes x and
 175 y of the mean plane of the fin. ~~The parameters presented in~~ Tables 2 and 4 ~~show~~
 176 ~~demonstrate~~ that ~~the~~ arrangement of layers has a strong influence on the natural
 177 frequencies, and ~~that~~ the added mass decreases the natural frequencies. Figures 3 and 4
 178 ~~show demonstrate~~ that ~~the~~ arrangement of layers has no influence on the coupled
 179 modal shapes (Tables 1 and 3).

Commented [A30]: Please specify the version number used in your study.

180
 181 **DYNAMIC ANALYSIS OF COMPOSITE MONOFIN**

182
 183 The dynamic ~~problem analysis of the composite monofin~~ was ~~conducted~~ performed
 184 using the data ~~proposed in~~ published in a previous study [14]. For this ~~analysis~~, the fin is
 185 subjected to combined translational and rotation motions. In this case, the quantity F
 186 introduced in the model problem ~~represented by Eq. (1)~~ ~~has the expression~~ can be
 187 expressed as follows:

Commented [A31]: Here, please discuss if the layers affect the frequency positively or negatively.

$$F = \begin{cases} x\dot{\omega}^2(t) + y\ddot{\omega}(t) - \dot{h}(t) \sin[\omega(t)] \\ y\dot{\omega}^2(t) - x\ddot{\omega}(t) - \dot{h}(t) \cos[\omega(t)] \end{cases}, \quad (9)$$

188
 189 ~~w~~where

$$\omega(t) = \theta_0 \sin(2\pi ft), \tag{10}$$

$$h(t) = h_0 \sin(2\pi ft - \psi),$$

190
 191 Here, $\theta_0 = 40^\circ$, $\psi = \pi/2$, $h_0 = 1c$, $f = 0.225$ [Hz], and $c = 0.7$; c is the chord of the
 192 profile, that is, ~~to say~~, the length of the fin. The phase ψ is introduced to model the
 193 muscle dissymmetry.

194 To avoid a resonant frequency, the excitation frequency is ~~taken far enough from~~
 195 ~~the~~ considered to be considerably different from the first natural frequency of the
 196 coupled system. The ~~most relevant~~ hydrodynamic parameters ~~that seem most relevant~~
 197 ~~are~~ the total force $R (= \int \Gamma \sigma(u)n \, d\Gamma)$ exerted on the fin during the movement phase.

198 The two components of R are, ~~respectively~~, the drag (D) and lift (L) of the fin. The
 199 quantity $T = -D$ is called thrust. Different ~~types of types of materials are used in the~~
 200 ~~manufacture of the~~ layers ~~of exist in the manufacture of the~~ fins. Throughout the model,
 201 the thickness of the fin is fixed in advance. We use the same physical characteristics as
 202 in the case of ~~the~~ modal analysis.

203 ~~By~~ using the same notation as before, the weak formulation of ~~the~~ boundary value
 204 problem ~~as expressed in Eqs. (1) and (2) is then written depicted as:~~

Commented [A32]: Please clarify the difference in the frequency.

Commented [A33]: I've deleted "respectively" since it isn't needed here. "Respectively" is an adverb that means "for each separately and in turn, and in the order mentioned." The correct use of respectively requires two parallel lists of corresponding items.

For example, these sentences are correct:
 The values of x and y are 3.5 and 18.2, respectively.
 The samples containing mouse serum, fly serum, and control solution were labeled M, D, and C, respectively.
 RNA and protein were digested with RNase A and Proteinase K, respectively.

$$\begin{aligned}
 & \frac{d^2}{dt^2} \int_{\Omega_s} \rho \mathbf{u} \cdot \mathbf{v} \, dx + \int_{\Omega_s} \sigma(\mathbf{u}) : \varepsilon(\mathbf{v}) \, dx \\
 & + \int_{\Gamma} p \mathbf{v} \cdot \mathbf{n} \, d\Gamma = - \int_{\Omega_s} \rho \mathbf{F} \cdot \mathbf{v} \, dx, \\
 & \frac{d^2}{dt^2} \left(\int_{\Omega_f} \frac{p\phi}{c_0^2} \, dx + \int_{\Gamma} \rho_0 \mathbf{u} \cdot \mathbf{n}\phi \, d\Gamma \right) \\
 & + \int_{\Omega_f} \nabla p \cdot \nabla \phi \, dx = \int_{\Omega_f} \rho_0 \mathbf{F} \cdot \nabla \phi \, dx.
 \end{aligned} \tag{11}$$

205
 206 In this section, we use ~~a particular the~~ kinematics proposed ~~in previously~~ [14, 15], even
 207 ~~if though~~ our models are not exactly similar. ~~Indeed, the~~ The kinematics ~~will allow us may~~
 208 ~~allow us in the future~~ to develop a new experimental protocol for measuring various
 209 hydrodynamic parameters of a fin. As the ~~model problem~~ model problem formulated in
 210 Eqs. (1) and -(2) is linear, it is ~~interesting noteworthy~~ to ~~see consider~~ the different
 211 contributions of each elementary movement in the dynamic response of the fin.

212 Dynamic Response in the Case of Translational Motion

213 The rotation $\omega(t)$ is ~~cancelled ignored~~, which renders ~~and the~~ movement ~~is then~~
 214 sinusoidal along the direction y . ~~Figure 5 shows that T~~ the two-layer model ~~seems~~
 215 ~~appears~~ to ~~give produce~~ a greater thrust than the other models, ~~as shown in Figure 5~~.
 216 This is consistent with the results of ~~the~~ modal analysis, where ~~this is the first~~ the two-
 217 ~~layer~~ model ~~that~~ has the lowest frequency. This type of movement ~~is not interesting for~~
 218 ~~the propulsive efficiency. Indeed, it~~ leads to ~~a zero mean~~ a propulsive efficiency ~~of zero~~
 219 ~~mean. On the other hand~~ ~~However, we see~~ a greater amplitude ~~for thrust, compared to is~~
 220 ~~observed for thrust than that for the~~ lift.

221 Dynamic Response in the Case of Rotation Motion

Commented [A34]: The authors must justify why they have used a model which is not the same as in Refs 14 and 15. The difference between the two model must be discussed. Also, discuss how the difference may not impact the results of this current study. The new model developed must be validated. Therefore, the authors must present the validation results.

Commented [A35]: Please explain why this is ignored.

222
223 The function $h(t)$ is ~~canceled ignored, which induces a and the movement will be a~~
224 sinusoidal rotation ~~to the movement~~ around ~~the~~ foot. ~~According to Figure 7, the~~The
225 two-layer model ~~always gives~~produces a greater thrust than the other models, ~~as shown~~
226 ~~in Figure 7. But by eliminating~~However, upon eliminating the results of this model in the
227 response curves, we can see that the five-layer model ~~gives~~achieves the best
228 performance. The three-layer model ~~gives~~produces a better lift ~~compared to than~~ other
229 models. Thus, this type of movement provides a ~~noteworthy~~ propulsive efficiency ~~rather~~
230 ~~interesting~~. This phenomenon is also ~~well~~ observed in the movement of marine
231 mammals. ~~On the other hand~~Furthermore, ~~such this~~ movement can be ~~interesting if you~~
232 ~~significant want to stay stationary at one position for a stationary position.~~

233 **Dynamic Response in the Case of Combined Rotational–Translational Motion.**

234 ~~In order to~~To ~~have obtain~~ a reasonable performance of the system, ~~we must combine~~
235 ~~both the~~ translational and rotation motions ~~s must be combined~~ and ~~take the full~~
236 ~~expression of~~ the excitation force F ~~must be expressed in its entirety. In this~~
237 ~~case, According to Figure 9, t~~he two-layer model ~~always gives~~produces a greater thrust
238 than the other models. In general, the three-layer model ~~seems appears~~ to ~~give achieve~~
239 a better ~~compromise~~balance between thrust and lift. ~~Indeed, its~~The thrust remains
240 positive all the time, while its lift ~~is of~~attains a negative value, ~~which renders it less~~
241 ~~important and has less importance~~ than ~~the~~ other models. It is possible that by varying
242 some physical parameters, we can significantly reduce ~~certain~~ hydrodynamic quantities,
243 such as ~~the~~ moment and lift.

244 **CONCLUSIONS**

Commented [A36]: The study is summarized well. However, please consider discussing the limitations, wider implications, and future scope of your study in this section.

245
246 Finally, ~~the above results allow us to we~~ draw ~~some the following~~ conclusions ~~from the~~
247 ~~results above.-~~

248 (i) The presence of layers provides some flexibility as indicated by the results of
249 modal analysis. The first mode is flexural type, which justifies the use of ~~the~~
250 models proposed in ~~a previous study~~ [1].

251 (ii) Fins ~~with made of~~ anisotropic materials ~~structures~~ allow ~~implementing~~
252 ~~implementation of a technique of layers~~ layer parameterization, ~~which to can~~
253 improve ~~the performance of the fin. It is quite possible now to bring special~~
254 ~~attention~~ ~~This study highlights the significance to of~~ the structure of the
255 layers and types of constituent materials thereof.

256 (iii) The sensitivity of the dynamic behavior of the model with respect to the
257 materials used and ~~the~~ boundary conditions for the fluid domain should be
258 noted. ~~indeed, the~~ ~~The~~ presence or absence of rigid walls ~~alters~~ significantly
259 ~~alters~~ the natural modes of the coupled system. Thus, the dynamic behavior
260 of a swimmer depends on the ~~localization in the pool where it is at the given~~
261 ~~moment.~~ To obtain a better thrust, the fin ~~has to be~~ ~~must be~~ elastic and ~~has~~
262 ~~to be sought at least~~ ~~moved~~ in rotation. The amplitude of the vertical
263 translation must be controlled to avoid a ~~too~~ ~~exceptionally~~ high lift, ~~in and~~
264 ~~to order to remain at~~ ~~maintain~~ a constant depth. The use of multilayer fins
265 ~~allows enables the~~ control ~~of~~ ~~ing an~~ excessive variations ~~s~~ of ~~the~~ lift (Figures 6,
266 8, and 10).

Commented [A37]: Did you perhaps mean "location of the swimmer in the pool at any given time"?

267 (iv) Most experimental results we know [16,17] are mainly interested
268 in primarily focused on the kinematic aspect of the mechanical
269 problem dynamics of fins. Nevertheless, the results obtained in the case of
270 a for a rigid fin [14] allowed us to have a basis for comparison. We found that
271 the dynamic responses curves are were similar for different models but with
272 different amplitudes. These differences in the results obtained can be
273 explained by the type of models used (rigid fin and flexible composite fin).
274 In this paper study, the a modal and dynamic analysis is proposed performed to
275 accurately understand the behavior of a flexible composite fin with a good accuracy. The
276 publications in the literatures deal with the behavior of fins Many studies have been
277 conducted on the behavior of fins; however, few authors have not studied the few
278 studies ease of have investigated the case of coupled boundary conditions [18]. It is for
279 this Hence, reason this study was conducted on upon the request of a company
280 specializing in the design of fins in order to determine ways of improve improving the
281 propulsion of a flexible composite fin.

282 References

- 284 1. J. C. Mollendorf, J. D. Felske, S. Samimy, and D. R. Pendergast, "A fluid/solid model
285 for predicting slender body deflection in a moving fluid," *Journal of Applied*
286 *Mechanics, Transactions ASME*, vol. 70, no. 3, pp. 346–350, 2003.
- 287 2. M. A. Luersen, R. Le Riche, D. Lemosse, and O. Le Maître, "A computationally
288 efficient approach to swimming monofin optimization," *Structural and*
289 *Multidisciplinary Optimization*, vol. 31, no. 6, pp. 488–496, 2006.

Commented [A38]: Statements referring to previous studies should be included in the Introduction and Results and Discussion. The conclusion should focus on the inferences drawn from the results of the study and the larger significance of the study. I recommend shifting these statements to the Introduction of this paper.

Commented [A39]: I recommend presenting this line at the start of the conclusion. The results can then logically follow from this sentence.

Commented [A40]: As mentioned before, this statement highlights the gaps in research related to the contents of this study and should be placed in the introductory part of the paper.

Commented [A41]: Please add a section after conclusions with heading "ACKNOWLEDGMENT" for acknowledgments. Specific company names should be provided in this section and not in the body of the manuscript.

Commented [A42]: Please add a section with heading "FUNDING" after the acknowledgment section where the funding sources should be mentioned.

Commented [A43]: Please add a separate section for symbols heading "NOMENCLATURE," where all the variables used in the manuscript are defined. Variables should appear in first column with the description in second column, all variables should appear in italics, and two-letter abbreviations should appear in italics.

Commented [A44]: I've excluded the references from my edit, as per your instructions.

Commented [A45]: Please format the references according to the Chicago Manual of Style and include the DOI wherever possible.

- 290 3. I. Akhtar, R. Mittal, G. V. Lauder, and E. Drucker, "Hydrodynamics of a biologically
291 inspired tandem flapping foil configuration," *Theoretical and Computational Fluid*
292 *Dynamics*, vol. 21, no. 3, pp. 155–170, 2007.
- 293 4. Y. Yadykin, V. Tenetov, and D. Levin, "The added mass of a flexible plate oscillating
294 in a fluid," *Journal of Fluids and Structures*, vol. 17, no. 1, pp. 115–123, 2003.
- 295 5. M. A. Hamdi, Y. Ousset, and G. Verchery, "A displacement method for analysis of
296 vibrations of coupled fluid-structure systems," *International Journal for Numerical*
297 *Methods in Engineering*, vol. 13, no. 1, pp. 139–150, 1978.
- 298 6. H. Morand and R. Ohayon, "Substructure variational analysis of the vibrations of
299 coupled fluid-structure systems: finite element results," *International Journal for*
300 *Numerical Methods in Engineering*, vol. 14, no. 5, pp. 741–755, 1979.
- 301 7. A. A. Parthasarathi, K. Grosh, and A. L. Nuttall, "Three-dimensional numerical
302 modeling for global cochlear dynamics," *Journal of the Acoustical Society of*
303 *America*, vol. 107, no. 1, pp. 474–485, 2000.
- 304 8. K. J. Bathe, *Finite Element Procedures*, Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, NJ, USA,
305 1996.
- 306 9. M. Mellado and R. Rodriguez, "Efficient solution of fluid-structure vibration
307 problems," *Applied Numerical Mathematics*, vol. 36, no. 4, pp. 389–400, 2001.
- 308 10. O. C. Zienkiewicz and R. L. Taylor, *The Finite Element Method*, vol. 2, McGraw-Hill,
309 1989.
- 310 11. H. J.-P. Morand and R. Ohayon, *Fluid Structure Interaction*, John Wiley & Sons,
311 1995.
- 312 12. A. El Baroudi, *Modeling in fluid-structure-interaction: applications to the problems*
313 *resulting from biomechanics [Ph.D. thesis]*, Université of Rennes 1, 2010.
- 314 13. F. Axisa and J. Antunes, *Modeling of Mechanical Systems: Fluid Structure*
315 *Interaction*, vol. 3, Elsevier, 2007.
- 316 14. D. A. Read, F. S. Hover, and M. S. Triantafyllou, "Forces on oscillating foils for
317 propulsion and maneuvering," *Journal of Fluids and Structures*, vol. 17, no. 1, pp.
318 163–183, 2003.

- 319 15. S. Shin, S. Y. Bae, I. C. Kim, and Y. J. Kim, "Effects of flexibility on propulsive force
320 acting on a heaving foil," *Ocean Engineering*, vol. 36, no. 3-4, pp. 285–294, 2009.
- 321 16. G. Nicolas and B. Bideau, "A kinematic and dynamic comparison of surface and
322 underwater displacement in high level monofin swimming," *Human Movement
323 Science*, vol. 28, no. 4, pp. 480–493, 2009.
- 324 17. G. Nicolas, B. Bideau, N. Bideau, B. Colobert, G. Le Guerroue, and P. Delamarche,
325 "A new system for analyzing swim fin propulsion based on human kinematic
326 data," *Journal of Biomechanics*, vol. 43, no. 10, pp. 1884–1889, 2010.
- 327 18. M. A. Luersen and R. Le Riche, "Adapting ply drop positions for compensating
328 fabric changes—application to swimming monofins," *Finite Elements in Analysis
329 and Design*, vol. 46, no. 10, pp. 930–935, 2010.